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We are a welcoming community 
seeking to receive,         
enjoy, and share           

the love of God in Jesus.    
No one is ever alone. 

Kingsway-Lambton United Church 
85 The Kingsway 
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Mission Statement 
We are a welcoming community seeking to receive, enjoy, and share the love of God in Jesus. 

No one is ever alone. 

MINISTERS 
Rev. Hugh D. Reid – Co-ordinating Minister 
revhdr@kingswaylambton.ca (ext. 26) 
Rev. Sam Needham – Presiding Minister Fresh Start  
sam@kingswaylambton.ca  
Rev. Leanne Ketcham – Youth Minister (on maternity leave) 
leanne@kingswaylambton.ca (ext. 31) 
Rev. Dr. David Winsor – Minister of Pastoral Care 
dwinsor454@sympatico.ca (ext. 23) 
Alana Martin – Youth Minister and Sunday School Animator 

ADMINISTRATION 
Janet Riddell - Church Administrator:  janet@kingswaylambton.ca (ext. 25) 
Ed Mock - Financial Administrator:  ed@kingswaylambton.ca (ext. 22) 

MUSIC 
Ian Grundy – Director of Music Ministry 
ian@kingswaylambton.ca (ext. 21) 

PROPERTY 
Santiago Duque – Property Superintendent  
santiago@kingswaylambton.ca (Ext. 36) 
Alipio Salazar – Sexton 

General Inquiries 
office@kingswaylambton.ca  
http://www.kingswaylambton.ca/ 
https://www.facebook.com/kingswaylambtonchurch 
https://twitter.com/klambtonunited 
https://www.instagram.com/klambtonunited/ 
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MINUTES FOR ANNUAL CONGREGATIONAL 
MEETING KINGSWAY-LAMBTON UNITED CHURCH 

Sunday March 1, 2020 
   In the Auditorium 

 
 
CONSTITUTION OF THE ANNUAL MEETING: 
 
The meeting was called to order in the Auditorium at 12:00 PM by Priscilla Knight, Board 
Chair 
 

1. PRAYER:             Rev. Hugh Reid 

2. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THE LAND:      Dorothy Foster 
 
3. READING of “IN MEMORIAM”:                    Gord Robb 

 
4. ADOPTION of MINUTES of Annual Congregation Meeting February 24, 2019, and May 21, 2019 

2019                          
 
MOTION 1: 
TO ADOPT THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONGREGATIONAL MEETING ON FEBRUARY 24, 2019: 
 
Moved by: Mary Prime  
Seconded by: Jean Veitel 
Abstentions: 0 
Opposed: 0 
Carried: Y 
 
MOTION 2: 
TO ADOPT THE MINUTES OF THE CONGREGATIONAL MEETING ON MAY 21, 2019: 
Moved by: Charles Donley 
Seconded by:  Joy Crysdale 
Abstentions: 0 
Opposed: 0 
Carried: Y 
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Thank you to volunteers who arranged and set up for lunch: Priscilla Knight 
Lois Allen, Nora Cutcliffe and Ivy, Nancy Vettesse, Nancy Wilson and Horace Knight. 
5. PRESENTATION OF REPORTS: 

 
INTRODUCTION OF KL’S KEY PRIORITIES (PILLARS) Priscilla Knight 
During 2019, one major project undertaken by Board was identification of priorities; chart 
identifies pillars and goals:  Living and Sharing our Faith, Living our Faith in the Community, 
Maintaining our Financial Viability, Ensuring Volunteer Leadership. New initiatives and existing 
services need to fall under one of the four pillars; the document will be renewed annually, and 
the agenda today has been organized around these four pillars. 
 
LIVING & SHARING OUR FAITH PILLAR 
 
CO-ORDINATING MINISTER’S REPORT  Rev. Hugh Reid 
Biblical stories are lived through programs in a safe environment; we strive to help people to 
grow through programs such as the Alpha Program, the Week of Guided Prayer, and day-to-day 
engagement. We strive to live this lifestyle, walk in this way of relationship, build faith in a 
younger generation, who will be the pillars for the younger generation. 
 
PASTORAL CARE REPORT Rev. David Winsor 
Incredible 20 years of Pastoral Care. Blessed to serve this portfolio, serving the ‘saints of 
humanity and spirituality’, and 60 years of service in Canada, the United States, and Honduras. 
Passing the baton and thanks to Rev Hugh Reid. 
Thanks to David Winsor for his many years of service; there will be a special celebration of 
David’s time at KLUC in September. The Pastoral Care Committee will be organizing the event. 
Watch for notices sometime in June. 
Announcement        Jean Veitel 
Thanks expressed to David Winsor, ‘good and faithful servant’. Rev Kerry Stover has agreed to 
continue the Pastoral Care portfolio. Thank you to Kerry for taking on the new Ministry. 
 
Greater Use of Technology  Joy Crysdale 
One example of how KLUC is making greater use of technology is through the digital outdoor 
sign. Many thanks to Don MacInnes, Susan Culver, and Jim Gallagher, and the UCW for funding 
the project.  
Electronic Board to be installed in existing frame. Advantages of digital sign include frequency 
and number of messages on a schedule (Mon-Wed, and Thurs-Sun) of 8-10 messages total per 
week, all managed from computer, compared to the 1-2 messages on a stationary sign.  
Should result in increased interaction potential with community, and increased attendance at 
events. Sign will operate between 7 AM – 9 PM, as per city guidelines and residential zoning. 
Messaging to be concise, and follow a ‘style guide’, and available to any group at the church.  
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Community Events / Social Justice Rev. Kerry Stover 
Foundation is faith and the community platform to share the faith as a form of outreach. 
Hallowe’en Event an example of welcoming in the community (attracting approximately 80) to 
the church, activating the church as a part of the community; the Live Nativity (attracting 200+ 
people from the community); Valentine Sing-a-Long attracted 90+.  
Art Show and Flea Market both established, create solid outreach and financial support of 
community agencies. Acknowledgment of how many agencies the UCW support with this 
outreach. 
Blanket Exercise permitted further investigation of Indigenous reality, living with the Truth and 
Reconciliation Report.  
 
Additional item: Affirming Ministry Update Priscilla Knight 
An update regarding an article in The March 2019 Carillon indicating that some members of 
Kingsway-Lambton were starting to explore whether we should become an Affirming Ministry.   
Becoming an Affirming Ministry is an educational process around sexual orientation, gender 
identities, age, race, class, economic status and abilities – which includes learning about other 
perspectives and how to be fully open to all people. 
This is a process of discernment and reflection, it will take some time. We would encourage 
everyone to participate in the events.  
Following the exploratory process the congregation would be asked to vote on whether it wants 
to become an Affirming Ministry.  
If you are interested in being a member of the task force, would like to be involved in some of 
the events or just want to indicate your support of KL becoming an Affirming Ministry, please let 
me know. Further information on Affirming Ministries can be found at 
http://affirmunited.ause.ca   
Should we decide to become an Affirming Ministry, we will celebrate the diversity of God’s 
creation. We will celebrate the richness of our community when we have diversity in age, gender 
identity, racial/cultural backgrounds, sexual orientation, ability, economic status and class and 
family configurations. We seek to create a safe space with an open invitation to bring every 
aspect of your whole self into your participation within this ministry.  
 
 
MAINTAINING OUR FINANCIAL VIABILITY PILLAR 
 
Treasurer’s Report  Geoff Butler 
Geoff Butler presenting on behalf of Bill Winterburn. 
Review of 1) 2019 Operating Results & 2) 2020 Operating Budget 
[Slides presented are on pg. 44 of 2019 Annual Report].  
 

1. 2019 Operating Results:   
• Revenues of $752,000 (about +$12,000 ahead of projected budget from last year) = key 

contributor ‘envelope’ offerings. 
• Increase of $3,000 in Fresh Start Grant, and $5,500 in Film Production income 

about:blank
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• Expenses – total Operating came in 31,000 below budget 
• Operating Deficit well below projected 

 
MOTION 3: 
THAT THE 2019 FINANCIAL REPORT AS PRINTED IN THE ANNUAL CONGREGATIONAL 
REPORT BE APPROVED. 
 
Moved by: Geoff Butler  
Seconded by:  Joy Crysdale 
Abstentions: 0 
Opposed: 0 
Carried: Y 
 

2. 2020 Operating Budget: 
• 2020 Operating Budget has been reviewed and approved by Committee of Stewards and 

the Official Board, with the intention of funding of important programs, and support 
programs that engage community, ensure staff are appropriately compensated and to 
establish realistic revenue and expense results.  

• Total revenue projection: $743,000 (drop of $10,000 from 2019) 
• Planned envelope giving at same level, and most categories planned in line with 2019; 

continued support from UCW. 
• Total expense projection: $809,000 reflects full complement of staff, and in line with 2019 

experience.  
• Operating deficit of $66,500; with internal fund transfer, brings it down to $26,000, a 

manageable number, and actual numbers that will be under full review of the Committee 
of Stewards, especially if numbers exceed thresholds. 

 
MOTION 4:  
THAT THE 2020 OPERATING BUDGET AS PRINTED IN THE ANNUAL CONGREGATIONAL 
REPORT BE APPROVED.  
 
Moved by: Geoff Butler 
Seconded by:  Gord Robb 
Abstentions: 0 
Opposed: 0 
Carried: Y 
 
Stewards Report Geoff Butler  
 
Leadership Roles: 

• Thank you, to Don MacInnes for outstanding leadership in the past, and Jim Gallagher 
for stepping into the role. 
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• Bill Winterburn retiring from Treasurer; Bill has done an outstanding job in financial 
reporting over the past eight years. 

• Roman Niemy continues to steer Ushering Services, thanks to his effective guidance 
 
Main Projects Completed/Underway: 

• Narthex, chapel and east doors, concrete step and loose railings fixed under budget 
• Organ Refurbishment, largest project undertaken, complete and under budget, thanks to Jim 

Gallagher.  
• Upgraded sound mixer installed in the sanctuary, adding capacity for microphones and 

improved audio operation. 
• Capital Projects Task Force, co-chaired by John Rook and Paul Collings, works towards 

completing a Means Analysis and longer term plan for improvements to church property.  
 
Thanks and appreciation to members of staff, hard work of Ed Mock, Janet Riddell, Santiago 
Duque, Ali Salazar, Connie McColl-Roehrs, and stewards’ contribution in groups and 
subcommittees, and leadership at Kingsway-Lambton. 
 
Financial Oversight Committee   Mireille Khayat 
F.O.C. met with Lynne Remigio, our external accountant on February 18th and reviewed 2019 
Financial Results and findings of review engagement, and passed motion to recommend the 
results, as well as Lynne Remigio to perform the independent review engagement for 2020 
financial year.  
 

MOTION 5: 
THAT LYNNE REMIGIO, CA, CPA, LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, BE APPOINTED TO 
CONDUCT AN INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF THE KINGSWAY-LAMBTON UNITED CHURCH 
2020 FINANCIAL RECORDS AND STATEMENTS. 
 
Moved by: Mireille Khayat 
Seconded by: Sandra Linsdell 
Abstentions: 0 
Opposed: 0 
Carried: Y 
 

Board of Trustees: John Waymann  
Review of Investment Portfolio:  
John reviewed a summary of three main portfolios and one transitory portfolio from our Capital 
Investments. Transitory Portfolio holds securities given to the church, but before they’re sold. 
Year-end total amount of invested capital of $1.233 million and as of close on Wednesday was 
at $1.221 million, an indication of how well this portfolio can ‘weather the storm’.  
In just over 6.75 years, since a more active portfolio management was engaged, portfolio up 
approx. $340,000.  
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To address “benchmark gap”, instructions have been given to portfolio manager to look at 
different options to lower gap, and with regard to the Manse Fund (Housing Allowance), the 
manager has been allowed to increase risk exposure. 
 
 
Asset Allocation Overview: 

- Current Yield at 2.6% generates $32,000 in cash flow across all portfolios 
Changes regarding Trustees: 
David Macdonald and John Franklin are at the end of their terms. Sincere thanks for their 
guidance, support and years of service. 
Two individuals have agreed to serve.  
 
MOTION 6: 
I WOULD MOVE THAT MARY PRIME AND JEFF LOUDON BE ELECTED AS TRUSTEES FOR 
A THREE-YEAR TERM BEGINNING MARCH 1, 2020 (TO MARCH 5, 2023). 
 

Moved by: John Waymann 
Seconded by: David Macdonald 
Abstentions: 0 
Opposed: 0 
Carried: Y 

 
ENSURE VOLUNTEER LEADERSHIP CONTINUES PILLAR 
 
Nominating Committee           Horace Knight 
This is an organization of volunteers. Our church is fortunate to be served by large group of 
dedicated volunteers, from Session to the Official Board, Fresh Start, Flea Market, Coffee 
Serving. Thank you all for volunteering. 
At the time of writing, the Nominating Committee is actively searching for replacement people 
as many are retiring, and need to ensure continuity. 

o Chair of the Official Board 
o Treasurer  
o Gifts & Giving Co-chairs 
o Communication Co-chairs 
o Nominating Committee Representatives 

 
Many of the current representatives have agreed to extend their terms, and changes have 
been made to underscore the flexibility of the terms and guidelines.  

 
MOTION 7: 
THAT PRISCILLA KNIGHT’S TERM AS CHAIR OF THE OFFICIAL BOARD BE EXTENDED 
TO JUNE 30, 2020 OR EARLIER IF A REPLACEMENT CHAIR IS APPOINTED. 
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Moved by: Horace Knight 
Seconded by: Charles Donley 
Abstentions: 1 
Opposed: 0 
Carried: Y 

 
6. THE BENEDICTION Rev. Hugh Reid 

 
• Thanks to ‘pillars among us’ - Priscilla Knight, Geoff Butler, Margaret Pace, and John 

Waymann, and many thanks to Bill Winterburn for his great service and support of 
Treasury. 

 
• We make a huge difference to our community through events like Pageant, and ‘keep the 

lights on’, ‘lights in the wilderness’. God bless you, thank you all, and may God take us into 
the roaring ‘20s with new and renewed hope.  

Meeting concluded at 1:45 PM 
 
 
 
 
  ___________________________   ______________________________ 
 
Priscilla Knight, Chair Anouchka Freybe, Secretary 

 
 
 
 
Next Annual Congregational Meeting on March 7, 2021 
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Coordinating Minister 
By Rev. Hugh Reid 
 
Adjusting on the Fly 
“Write down the revelation and make it plain on tablets so that a herald may run with it. 
For the revelation awaits an appointed time; it speaks of the end and will not prove false. 
Though it linger, wait for it; it will certainly come and will not delay… 
the righteous person will live by their faithfulness…”  Habbakuk 2:2-3,4b  
 
Well, we didn’t see that coming. 
 
Of all the annual reports that have ever been produced by Kingsway-Lambton this one has been 
for our strangest year. The word “unprecedented” has been worn out in 2020 but it is apt. Since 
1936, through World War and financial collapse, through grief and crisis, we have always been 
able to console ourselves and rally strength by gathering together:  worshipping, eating, serving, 
being community gathered in the risen love and hope that the world cannot give. This year, we 
have not been able to gather in all the old ways. But the risen love and hope of Jesus Christ 
continue to be our light; and in that risen love and hope, our ministry, gathering, and service in 
new ways continues as is witnessed in the pages of this report. 
 
At the beginning of this pandemic, when chaos broke loose, I was in Tennessee with John 
Waymann and friends on my typical March golf excursion. Enjoying the trails of the Smokey 
Mountains, I had taken some video of spring on the Little Pigeon River thinking I might use it for 
our Easter Service. Suddenly, the world came apart and both John and I were plunged into a 
different reality than a golf holiday. We returned to quarantine. That video of the Little Pigeon and 
springtime in Tennessee which I used in my first online service made me realize that we had our 
own river nearby and I began filming the Humber and its slow spring awakening (and it was very 
slow last year). I thought that seeing spring’s visible return and the resilience of life would be a 
pastoral balm for weary and cloistered hearts. So each week, I stood at the same place on the 
Dundas Bridge and filmed the changing Humber valley. 
 
I discovered miracles I had never noticed living right next door as I made videos of the changes.  
Waves of wildflowers succeeded one another and I learned their names, Blood Root, Fig 
Buttercups, Chicory, Siberian Squill, and Spotted Touch-Me-Nots. I filmed them, thinking to myself 
that as the world gave way to life, the threat of the COVID-19 virus would also disappear.  We 
had, after all, been through this before with SARS. 
 
Now, almost a year later, week by week I go onto a frigid Humber bridge and stand to film the 
wonder of ice forming in the river and wintering ducks surviving somehow.    
 
I am anticipating watching spring unfold again and, quickened by vaccines, have the old hope 
that with spring the threat of COVID-19 will be stilled. It is a hope with more caution and patience. 
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Hope felt in the annual resilience of spring has needed a deeper foundation in the eternal 
resilience of faith. This enduring hope sustains us through the passing seasons and gives purpose 
and meaning for the long term, in life and in death.   
 
I’ve needed that sustaining hope. This past year saw a quick and radical change in the shape of 
my ministerial week after 34 years. Now it is the early part of the week when I try to make most 
of my pastoral calls (via phone, zoom, and email), meetings and programs in the evening online.  
Bible Study has remained on Wednesday morning but online. Attendance has improved averaging 
around 20 or more and at times going coast to coast. Everything takes longer and I miss 
immensely the energy, complexity, and joy of meeting in person. That “missing” is multiplied many 
times with regard to worship. Speaking by myself into my phone in an empty church is not the 
same. I begin the task of putting the parts together for our Sunday online service early in the week 
(e.g. filming the Humber). Ian receives the hymn suggestions one or two weeks before and on 
Thursday I begin to assemble the parts. The assembly continues on Friday when the hymn audio 
tracks and anthem arrive and I record parts at home. Saturday is filming day for the segments 
done in the church. The sermon is completed and then filmed Saturday night. Then comes the 
editing through the night. Usually, I finish editing about 6am on Sunday morning. Then I render 
the completed service and upload it to YouTube which usually takes until 8am. Sometimes the 
rendering process goes longer. Then I post the link to our eblast and send the link to our 
wonderful communication team for posting on our other platforms. After a long day and night I 
attend Fresh Start if I can. The preparation time for worship remains the same but what was once 
done in an hour and a little on Sunday mornings takes about 18 hours now. I am still trying to 
maintain Monday as a day off but because my schedule is so tight through the rest of the week, I 
will schedule funerals and events for Sunday afternoons and Monday and begin answering emails 
to take pressure off the rest of the week. 
 
The hardest adjustment for me has been funerals with no hugs and no receptions. We have said 
good-bye to many wonderful members, family, and friends over this year but grief has been 
complicated because of COVID-19. Some services, such as that of Jean McDiarmid are still looking 
for a date to properly remember wonderful lives. Many more have been done with small numbers. 
Ross Wemp, David Siddall and other wonderful souls who have been so much part of the fabric 
of Kingsway-Lambton were celebrated and commended into God’s keeping with full hearts but 
not full numbers. Baptisms and marriages have been postponed or held quietly waiting for 
another day of celebration. We did have that joyful baptism on the lawn with Margaret, Risa and 
Sam. 
 
Our year did not look the same. No Art Show, no Flea Market, no fall Grief Group, no Week of 
Guided Prayer, no outdoor nativity. It gives “cancel culture” a whole different meaning. But there 
was a tremendously successful if different Christmas Pageant, thanks to Donna-Lee Waymann and 
team. This year, in 2021, we are having an online Grief Group, and online Week of Guided prayer 
(thanks to Esther), an online Art Show. We are adjusting.   
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We have had to be nimble and flexible this year, learn new things and technologies, adjust on the 
fly, but this is good training for the years ahead as we prepare to be a church coming out of 
COVID-19 into a more secular society and changing world. Social indicators of stress and anxiety 
are rising steeply as people continue to abandon the deep well and eternal resources of love and 
dignity in the living God and try to find meaning in shallow pools, performance, and things.  
 
In the course of 2020, we said good-bye to Rev. Kerry Stover after a brief but warm time with us.  
We said good-bye to the imaginative presence of Rhiannon Hill. We sent Rev. Leanne Ketcham 
into the joys of motherhood. We also said farewell to Connie McColl a valued member of our 
custodial staff. On January 1, 2021, we welcomed Rev. Sam Needham to coordinating our Fresh 
Start Service and he has brought great freshness, humour, and depth, and we welcomed Alana 
Martin with her online skills to take on the task of our youth ministry and online Sunday School 
Programme. 
 
I wanted to give great thanks, praise, and credit to our lay leadership who have given so much to 
us all in this strange year. To Priscilla Knight, Geoffrey Butler, to Margaret Pace and her very able 
successor as Clerk of Session, Elizabeth Dalzell Tomik. To Jim Gallagher for overseeing the upkeep 
and safety of our building and for the month we met, of us, and for continuing to reimagine 
reopening. To Jean Veitel and her team on M&P who have been faced with a lot of challenges 
handled with grace and resilience. To Susan Culver, Sheryl Macdonald, and Risa MacDonald our 
online communications team. Everyone is doing overtime. We welcome you to join this team. 
 
When thanks and credit are going around, I need to thank my fellow staff members, Ian Grundy, 
Janet Riddell, Ed Mock, Santiago Duque and the un-retiring David Winsor who have stepped up 
in so many ways, facing the challenges caused by COVID-19 and finding ways to go way beyond 
the minimum in meeting those challenges. 
 
I am most grateful to all of you who have filled these pages. We gather and serve in the way that 
preserves the earthly health of all of us. We work for eternity and mark its precious moments of 
love in the faithfulness shown by these pages. It is easier to adjust when you have good news to 
share and faithful hearts with which to share it. 
 
With love, your adjustable servant, Rev. Hugh D. Reid 

 
Benevolence Fund  
By Rev. Hugh Reid 
 
 And the king will answer them, ‘Truly I tell you, just as you did it to one of the least of these 
who are members of my family, you did it to me.’  (Matthew 25:40) 
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The Benevolent Fund of Kingsway-Lambton provides emergency assistance to people in need and 
support to organizations that serve people in crisis. It is administered by me as Coordinating 
Minister with ad hoc support from a consultative committee and our Church Administrator. 
 
This year as with many things the fund was deployed in different ways during COVID-19. Many 
thanks to Janet Riddell who devised a safe way and personally implemented it to see that food 
vouchers continued to get into the hands of those who need them. We are one of a very few 
churches who continue to do this. We also gave more to support local food programmes and a 
downtown food programme which were under heavier strain because of COVID-19. We also gave 
support to our own outreach program to maintain its faithful support of local agencies and we 
provided a security backing to our Warmth Initiative, though through the generosity of 
neighbours that guarantee didn’t have to be drawn upon. 
 
Our policy is not to give cash, though exceptions are made. Individual assistance is generally 
limited to once a month. Most help is in the form of food cards, a cheque made out to a landlord, 
pharmacy, Hydro, etc. In 2020, we again bought food vouchers in bulk for a discount.  Last year, 
a total of $7,065 was disbursed on your behalf in Jesus’ name. We received $7,366 in donations.  
$2,675 was given out in food vouchers. We gave out $890 to four individuals in crisis, which is 
down considerably because of diminished contacts through COVID-19, but $3,500 to 
organizations which is up considerably. After an anxious year we received an unexpected but 
generous influx of donations in December, totalling $8,089 for the year. This will allow us to 
continue with even more confidence the support we have been giving. Thank you. The maximum 
support any individual or organization can receive at the minister’s discretion is $1,000 in a year. 
Exceptions can be sought, as was given to support outreach.   
 
We try to use the fund to create independence not dependency, though some are long time 
recipients.  For some, our vouchers are the only way to acquire fresh food.  We are often a last 
resort.  It can be frustrating and demanding but there is a need and Jesus keeps challenging us to 
fill it.  You make a difference.  
 
We combine with the interest income from the Emma Johnston Fund, to help a child attend a 
summer camp or other youth support. That fund was established in memory of Emma Johnston 
and is open to donations in her memory to give a child the chance in life that tragedy took from 
Emma.  
  
This year, through the Benevolent Fund of Kingsway-Lambton, you again made a difference for 
“the least of these” sisters and brothers of ours. Many again discovered when there is nowhere 
else to turn, there is the church. Many who have fallen through the cracks found a supportive 
place to land. By this report, let me pass on to you the appreciation, thanks and blessings I receive 
from people you have never met, but for whom you have been a neighbour in Jesus’ name. 
    
Respectfully Submitted  
Rev. Hugh D. Reid 



14 
 

Pastoral Care Minister 
By Dr. Rev. David Winsor 
 
Who would have believed that the opening paragraph of a book published in 1859 would be so 
prescient of what is happening today? Charles Dickens in his novel A Tale of Two Cities has the 
opening paragraph begin with “It was the best of times, it was the worst of times...” 
 
In many facets of our lives in 2020 that has been our experience. In our Pastoral Care Ministry, we 
your Committee, (whose names are acknowledged below) have lived through the highs and the 
lows. For the first few weeks of 2020 visitations and regular pastoral tasks proceeded normally. 
Then, seemingly immediately, reality, born of necessity, gave pride of place to virtually, or changes 
occurred in what had been normal. I had never conducted funerals virtually or prayed by phone 
with hospitalized church members and with one parishioner just minutes before his death. And 
not being present with those in need, whom you care deeply about, having been their pastoral 
care minister for 20 years, made it feel like “the worst of times...” 
 
Then there are things in the new reality whose limits will never be discovered. Degrees of empathy, 
caring, creativity, new understandings, hitherto not even imagined have now been experienced. 
Through imaginative uses of technology, shut-ins could be 'in church and sing the hymns on 
Sunday mornings', anyone could 'attend' Wednesday Bible study without leaving home, the warm 
feelings generated by community and conversation at coffee hour took place thanks to Zoom. 
Also, our Children's Christmas Pageant, with its church home shuttered, found new life and a 
unique presentation through the internet and to date over 1700 people have viewed it. Several of 
our church members have phoned me offering themselves to phone the elderly, those ill at home 
or in hospital, to share in conversation and hear concerns. 
 
With homemade masks shared, food and warm clothing donated and distributed and money 
provided for the needy: all of the above, occurred because of the Christ-like graces of caring for 
one another so many of you exhibited. Yes, you made it feel like “the best of times.” 
 
For the lovers of the 'bottom line' pastoral calls to homes and hospitals were 661, Funerals: 8, 
Weddings: 1, and a small number of counselling sessions. 
 
Because of staff changes I am glad and honoured to postpone my retirement and continue in this 
position until a replacement is hired. 
 
I and you owe an enormous debt of gratitude to the following members of your Pastoral Care 
Team for their generous and faithful service to this ministry: Dante Asquini, Jane Bright, Anne 
McMinn, Anne Mollenhauer, Margaret Pace, Susan Parks and Sue Theakston. 
 
With gratitude and joy I submit this report, (Rev. Dr.) David Winsor 
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Youth Ministry Annual Report 
By Alana Martin, Rev. Leanne Ketcham and Jennifer Visser 

2020 brought few silver linings, however, one of the silver lines for which we praise God was the 
opportunity to connect more deeply with our youth and demonstrate the power of Church 
community and God’s constancy. In a troubled time, Kingsway-Lambton’s youth were given the 
opportunity to talk about their fears and anxieties, celebrate the small and big wins of their lives, 
and unpack their growing awareness of and concern for social injustices being played out on the 
world’s stage. What an honour and privilege to journey alongside these young people who are 
yearning for truth, justice and love in their lives and the world. Never has the good news of Jesus 
Christ been more relevant. 

Rev. Leanne Ketcham led our youth programming until the end of December, when she started a 
maternity leave to care for the newest addition to the Ketcham family, baby Chloe. In January 
2021, we welcomed Alana Martin, minister of The GO Project (www.thegoproject.ca), who will be 
leading youth ministry at Kingsway-Lambton while Rev. Leanne is on maternity leave until mid-
March. Alana will bring a wealth of spiritual and relational gifts, as well as a witty and loving 
demeanor...and a very cute dog, Murphy! 

Teen Drop In & Confirmation 

In the spring, the teens of Kingsway-Lambton were often found, like so many of us, on Zoom, 
having epic scavenger hunts and playing games. We spent a lot of weeks naming the griefs and 
losses we experienced as pivotal events like prom, graduation, and school trips were cancelled. 
We celebrated each other’s birthdays and commiserated over distance learning. In the summer, 
the teens of Kingsway-Lambton were usually found on the KLUC lawn for an outdoor, distanced 
movie night. We watched (and sang) to movies Hamilton, The Greatest Showman, and Mulan. We 
also dug into conversations about racism, faith, and justice, reflecting on racism in Canada and in 
the United States.  A heartfelt thanks to Ali and Santiago for helping us manage the equipment 
and tech every movie night and to Rev. Leanne for carefully planning each evening ensuring that 
each teen felt welcomed and included. 

The highlight of the autumn was an outdoor, socially distanced baby shower for Rev. Leanne. She 
and her husband, Andrew, were showered with love and beautiful gifts from the Teen Drop In 
community. A big thanks to Ede, Victoria and Alia, three of our teens who organized the event 
and the families who made Leanne feel so special. 

In the fall, the teens of Kingsway-Lambton were usually found back on Zoom as COVID-19 cases 
increased. We created weekly themes that included fun activities, Jesus and Justice and wellness. 
The year ended with a Zoom gingerbread building event. 

about:blank
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Our online Confirmation cohort kicked things off in September with a whopping ten teens 
journeying together to ask deep questions about God and life. A special part of the Confirmation 
program is that each Confirmee is paired for the year with a Prayer Partner, an adult member of 
Kingsway-Lambton who has committed to pray for his/her partner each day. The Prayer Partners 
exchange letters where the Confirmee can get to know the Prayer Partner and ask questions about 
faith and life. Thank you to the adults who have committed to this relationship. 
 

The Official Board 
By Priscilla Knight 
 
The Official Board carried on its work during 2020 but as was the case with most activities during 
the pandemic, the work was done virtually. Zoom meetings became the norm. Once the church 
leaders realized that the pandemic was upon us, the Coordinating Committee (including 
Ministerial staff and chairs of all committees reporting to the Official Board) was convened to 
consider the closing of the church, the interruption of other programs and our relationship with 
our outside renters. This committee met regularly and brought concerns to the Official Board 
when decisions were required. 
 
Although much of our emphasis during the year was on the pandemic, we also dealt with other 
issues. 
• We updated the Pillars, Goals for KL document. The chart that follows details our priorities.  As 

we consider the existing programs and services as well as new initiatives, we wanted to ensure 
that each fall under one of the four pillars. This document was used to match our goals and 
objectives to the budget. 

• The new electronic sign was installed early in the year and allowed us to communicate with 
both our community and members more effectively. The sign has been used to provide 
information on our services and programs and also provide uplifting quotes. 
 

Given the uncertainty and changing environment over the last year, I would like to thank our staff 
for going above and beyond. Our ministers Rev. Hugh Reid, Rev. Kerry Stover and Rev. Leanne 
Ketcham all worked tirelessly to learn new ways to deliver our worship services, bible studies, 
youth groups and other interactive programs. I appreciate the work Rev. Dr. David Winsor did in 
continuing to connect with our members. As well, David extended his retirement date to 
accommodate the needs of the church. Ian Grundy and the soloists found new ways to provide 
song and music for the 10 am service and also Fresh Start.  His work has added so much to the 
services. It is very important to thank Santiago Duque for assuming greater responsibility for our 
church building during this period, much of the time being the only person in the building. Thanks 
also to our office staff Janet Riddell and Ed Mock who despite the many challenges carried on 
with their responsibilities virtually. I want to thank the members of the Official Board, especially 
those who are part of the Coordinating Committee for their dedication and energy in helping the 
Board to deal with all aspects of our church life during 2020. Thanks to Anouchka Freybe for her 
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invaluable work as Secretary of the Official Board. Finally, thank you to all members and adherents 
of KL for their support of Kingsway-Lambton and the love you show for each other and the world 
beyond our doors.  
 
The Official Board consists of members of Session; members of the Committee of Stewards; 
representatives to the Regional Council; chairs of the Board of Trustees, the UCW, 
Communications, Financial Oversight, Gifts & Giving, Ministry & Personnel and Nominating 
Committees. I encourage you to read these committees’ reports which are included further in this 
report.  
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Communications Committee  
 
Accomplishments for 2020 
• After delays due to the pandemic, the 2020 edition of the Photo Directory for KLUC was 

finalized and distributed to the congregation in December. This edition replaces the 2012 
Directory. Thanks to Nancy McConnell for spearheading this project.  

• Played a crucial role in facilitating the move to On-line Worship Services in March: added “KL 
Worships at Home” sections to website. Kept congregation informed re pandemic restrictions 
on worship gatherings. 

• Published 3 16-page issues of The Carillon: editor, Arline Cook 
• Updated Art Show and Flea Market pages to reflect delays, then cancellation of these events 

in 2020. Promoted Virtual Pageant. 
• Continued active presence on social media (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter) to support on-line 

worship services, and special events such as the Virtual Pageant, Listening Circle, Love Changes 
Everything, virtual Easter and Christmas services.  
 

Goals for 2021  
• Investigate and develop external advertising project for KL  
• Continue to refresh portions of the website (e.g.: pandemic updates; support Art Show, Flea 

Market, Fresh Start initiatives, Pageant) 
• Continue increased level of posts/content on Facebook, Instagram, Twitter 

 

Digital Usage Analytics: 

 Usage # Followers Activity Other 

Facebook 240 Page 
Views/mo 
Reach – 200 to 
600/wk  

398 (up 28%) Avg 2 to 3 posts 
per wk. Up to 5 
to 6 posts/ wk.  

65% female: 
35% male 

Instagram 217 Posts 
 

260 (up 37%) Avg 4 posts per 
wk. 

55% female: 
45% male 

Twitter 102 Tweets  225 (no 
increase) 

Avg 2 posts / 
wk. 

 

Website Avg 1500 
Sessions / mo 

Avg 935 active 
users/mo 

Avg. session 
1:55 

66% male   34% 
female 

 
Committee Members 
Sheryl Macdonald and Susan Culver – Co-chairs 
Risa MacDonald – Social Media 
Arline Cook –The Carillon editor 
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Gifts and Giving Committee 
By Susan Franklin and John Franklin 
 
The Gifts and Giving Committee continued the work of fundraising under difficult circumstances 
in 2020. We thank all those who have continued to support Kingsway-Lambton United Church 
over the past year.                          

 2016              2017              2018              2019              2020             2021 
Total Pledged          $431,934       $420,111       $410,743       $400,190        $416,480      $402,468 
# of Pledges                     221               206                208                190                193              181 
Average Pledge           $1,954           $2,039           $1,975           $2,106           $2,158           $2,224 
 
Stewardship Campaign 
The 2021 Stewardship Campaign centred on KLUC’s continued church services, support for our 
church family and support for our community through an unprecedented time.  Events, meetings 
and some programming continued using Zoom, and extraordinary measures were utilized to 
provide excellent church services through YouTube.  A slide show of photographs depicted the 
willingness of ministers, staff and volunteers to continue all possible facets of the life of KLUC 
through the pandemic was produced and shown during 2 Sunday services and posted on the 
website to remind everyone that, in spite of COVID-19, the life and work of the church continues.  
Once again, we remind our church family that Stewardship is not a once a year occurrence but a 
year-round responsibility of all us.  Many thanks to Bob Mundy and all of the Gifts and Giving 
Committee for their support in ensuring a vital part of our church life continues to be successful.  
Thank you to everyone who generously supported and will continue to support the 2021 
Stewardship Campaign. 
 
Ongoing work of the G & G Committee  
During the year $4,904.58 was contributed by memorial donations. Three meetings of the G & G 
Committee were held in 2020. We were advised of two legacy gifts that will be coming. 
 
Legacy 
The following individuals have indicated that Kingsway-Lambton United Church has been included 
in their estate plans and we thank them:   Gwen Atkinson, Avalon Neale, Paul & Barbara Collings, 
Robert & Dianne Mundy, Hans Dickie, Duncan & Wendy Mackenzie, Donald & Mary-Margaret 
MacInnes, John & Susan Franklin, Gordon Robb, John & Donna-Lee Waymann, and six who wish 
to remain anonymous. 
The G & G Committee encourages all members to join the legacy program. We wish to 
acknowledge with thanks two gifts that will be received in 2021 from the estates of Alfred Mettler 
and Jean Gunn. 
 
Committee Members 
Susan and John Franklin (Co-Chairs), Priscilla Knight, Bob Mundy, Rev. Hugh Reid, Gord Robb, 
John Waymann  
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Ministry and Personnel Committee 
By Jean Veitel 
  
2020 has been quite a year...   
 
COVID-19  

The pandemic has significantly impacted where our staff work and the effort that is required 
to be successful in their roles. With the closure of the Church building since mid-March, 2020: 

• Our Ministers have been forced to learn a whole new way of preparing and delivering weekly 
services on YouTube and Zoom as well as providing pastoral care by phone or masked and 
socially distanced. 

• Our youth groups have been continuing their discussions and fun times through Zoom get-
togethers and have been entertained watching movies outside on the lawn – socially distanced, 
of course. 

• Our choir leads are singing solo from home and then, through the magic of technology and 
the genius of our Choir Director, their voices are joined together to inspire the congregation 
who are watching and listening to the weekly services.  

• Our administrative staff have been working primarily from home, coming in only to handle 
those responsibilities that require access to specialized equipment or other resources. 

• Our Property team has stepped up to the increased needs of cleaning and sanitization of all 
surfaces, within offices, washrooms, and the nursery. They also ensure that anyone who enters 
the building is authorized and completes a COVID-19 screening form in the remote chance 
that we need to do contact tracing.     

M&P was pleased to recommend to the Official Board that these pandemic related extras by the 
staff be acknowledged by the Congregation. With the Board’s approval, personalized thank you 
letters and financial tokens of appreciation were distributed to these individuals just before 
Christmas. 

 
Staff Changes 
• We are pleased to welcome Sam Needham as our Interim Fresh Start Presiding Minister who 

joined us on January 3rd, 2021.  
• We are continuing our search for an individual to step into the Pastoral Care Ministry on an 

interim basis so that Rev. Dr. Winsor can fully enjoy his retirement. Graciously, David has agreed 
to continue to support Kingsway-Lambton in this capacity for 5 hours/week while this search 
is ongoing.  

• While Rev. Leanne is on parental leave, Alana Martin of the UCC GO Project has taken on the 
responsibility for the Youth Program.  

• Session will initiate a project to examine the needs of the Children’s Ministry in the spring.  As 
a result, it was decided not to extend Rhiannon Hill’s contract.   

• Connie McColl resigned her position in December. For the moment, we will not be replacing 
her. 
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• Finally, although it was disappointing to accept the resignation of Rev. Kerry Stover in early 
October, it gives us the opportunity to rethink and redesign the position description based on 
what worked well and what did not.   This work is ongoing. 

 
M&P Committee 
• The Committee is now fully staffed with the additions of Kerri Hagerman and Barbara Manners. 
• The members supported their assigned staff members throughout the year by phone and, 

when absolutely necessary, in person.  The annual performance review process was completed 
during the 4th quarter. 

• Occupational Health and Safety Policy and Procedures were approved by the Official Board in 
August and will be fully implemented when it’s possible to return to “normal” times.   

 
Committee Members 
Ray Bernys, Kerri Hagerman, David Hanmer, Barbara Manners, Jean Veitel (Chair) 
 

The Nominating Committee 
By Horace Knight 
 
The Nominating Committee is responsible for filling senior volunteer roles within the Church. The 
committee is pleased to report on the following changes in leadership roles since the March 2020 
Annual Meeting of Kingsway-Lambton United Church.  
 
Appointments  
• Elizabeth Dalzell Tomik was appointed as the Clerk of Session for a 2-year term ending June 1, 

2022 
• Susan Culver and Sheryl Macdonald’s terms as Co-Chairs of Communications were extended 

to March 7, 2021. 
• Priscilla Knight’s term as OB Chair was extending to March 7, 2021. 
 
Continuing Search Activity 
At the time of writing the Nominating Committee is actively searching for volunteers to assume 
the following key leadership roles: 
• Chair of the Official Board 
• Co-Chair Gifts and Giving (Legacy) 
• Regional Council Representatives 
• Nominating Committee Members 
As noted above we currently have a number of volunteer leadership vacancies. KL is unable to 
function as it currently does without people in these roles, The Nominating Committee would like 
all members to reflect on ways they are able to help and contact me if you are interested in any 
of these volunteer roles.  
 
Currently, I am the only member of the Nominating Committee. 
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Session Annual Report 
By Elizabeth Tomik 
 
Session serves the spiritual interests of Kingsway-Lambton United Church and fosters the 
realization of the congregation’s mission through various committees and their dedicated 
members.  The committees cover Worship, Christian Education, Outreach and Caring, Connecting 
and Welcoming. 
 
In 2020, Margaret Pace stepped down as Clerk of Session after over three years in the role. We 
want to extend our heartfelt thanks to Margaret for her commitment and leadership. Elizabeth 
Tomik was appointed Clerk of Session in May. 
 
Session met only twice during the year due to the pandemic. However, its committees and 
members were active throughout the year, making a significant contribution to the life and work 
of the church.   
 
The Worship Committee worked on finalizing its updated written mandate; this task is still 
underway.   Cheryl Lynch has taken over from Jeff Loudon as the Chair of the Worship Committee. 
 
The Music Committee met throughout the year and reports: 
• Music is an integral part of our church services, even more as now as we only have virtual 

services with no choir singing. 
• Feedback on the music at the 10am Service has been extremely positive. Our Section Leads 

are doing an excellent job under the direction of Ian Grundy who has had to expand his 
digital/tech skills and has shown admirable dedication and agility. 

• Ian was involved with the Fresh Start and Christmas pageant music for the first time this year 
and feedback for those efforts has been incredibly positive. Ian is happy to be involved with 
more of the music in our church than just the 10am Service. 
 

The Fresh Start Steering Committee met on a regular basis to discuss and manage the form of 
the service and to plan. Services are held virtually, recorded and then posted on YouTube.  
Attendance averaged around fifty. Rev. Leanne Ketcham commenced a maternity leave upon the 
arrival of her beautiful daughter, Chloe, on December 20, 2020 and Rev. Sam Needham was hired 
to assume the role of Presiding Minister for the Fresh Start Service on an interim basis.   
 
In the fall, the Fresh Start Committee hosted A Listening Circle about Racism, Social Justice, 
and Personal Experiences. The online panel discussion explored systemic racism and our 
individual role in helping to end it. Attendees heard moving personal stories and were inspired to 
take meaningful action to help reduce the injustices around us. The dialogue has sparked 
heightened interest around this issue and more opportunities for us to expand our understanding 
of the topic are planned for 2021. 
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KLUC continued its strong commitment to Christian Education over the course of the year, 
despite the pandemic and a vacancy in the role of Chair, Christian Education including: 
 
• The Children's Ministry went online through videos created by Church School Animator, 

Rhiannon Hill.  Rhiannon also reached out to Church School families to keep in touch.  In 2020, 
Session mandated a review of the Children’s Ministry. A working group will commence this 
work early in 2021. 

• The Alpha Program moved online on Wednesday nights in the fall of 2020.  Judy Crichton, 
Mary Prime and Linda Locke organized and facilitated the sessions, supported wonderfully by 
Rev. Hugh Reid. There were 17 participants. The Alpha team did a wonderful job of helping 
participants feel connected throughout the series despite the distances between us. 

• The 84th Annual Christmas Pageant was reimagined by a core group of individuals led by 
Donna-Lee Waymann who did a remarkable job of galvanizing support from many quarters 
including former pageant participants – both recent and long ago. The virtual pageant was 
released on December 2, 2020 and then again on Christmas Eve. Many thanks to Louis Mantis 
for his inspiring directorial skills and to Angela Switt for helping with the endless 
correspondence. 

In terms of Outreach, the need to provide support to members of our community only increased 
during 2020. Kingsway-Lambton continued its longstanding commitment to ensuring that no one 
is alone as described below: 
 
• We held two Community Outreach appeals, one in the spring and one in the fall. Both appeals 

were made virtually through weekly e-blasts and donations were down as a result. Despite 
this, we were still able to provide $1,000 to each of the agencies we support in December 2020 
with some support from the Benevolent Fund. Those agencies are: Youth Without Shelter; 
Parkdale Golden Age Foundation; The Gate House; Out of the Cold (All Saints Kingsway); Youth 
Unlimited; Lake Scugog Camp; Stonegate Ministry. 

• In honour of White Gift Sunday, KLUC has, in more recent years, donated toys to Connect 
Ministries on behalf of refugee children. In 2020, Connect Ministries successfully reached its 
goal of 1,000 toys through other means. So KLUC turned its attention to the issue of food 
insecurity. After a campaign of just over one week, a team (led by Donna-Lee Waymann and 
Elizabeth Tomik) delivered two carloads of food to Christ Church St. James Food Pantry (part 
of Stonegate Ministry); monetary gifts allowed us to provide a gift card of over $1,100 as well. 

Lastly, Session members maintained their commitment to Caring, Connecting and Welcoming 
(led by Margaret Pace.) Early in the spring, Elders volunteered to keep in touch with an assigned 
group of KLUC members and adherents, especially the ones who live alone or who are vulnerable. 
Pastoral Care provided gifts to members in long-term care homes during the summer. In 
November we started a virtual coffee hour every Sunday at 11:15am. We use a new online platform 
called Lobby which has a small but dedicated following. 
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Session Members  
Anne Adams, Dante Asquini, Mary Asquini, Janice Bull, Geoffrey Butler (Stewards Chair), Joy 
Crysdale, Susan Culver (Co-Chair, Communications), Karen Czaniecki (Baptism Coordinator), 
Dorothy Donley, Connie Dupak, Richard Efting (Co-Leader, Youth Group), Dorothy Foster, Moira 
Grant, Susan Franklin (Chair, Honduran Committee), Bruce Haines, Marc Halbach, Barbara Jarvis, 
Rick Johnston, Beverley Judson, Horace Knight (Chair Fresh Start, Nominating Committee, and 
Stonegate Ministry), Linda Locke, Stan Locke, Jeff Loudon Cheryl Lynch (Chair, Worship and 
Communion), Dianne Mundy, Robert Mundy, Sandra Niemy, Katie Overstrom (Pageant 
coordinating team), Margaret Pace (Clerk of Session), Mary Prime, Elizabeth Tomik (Clerk of 
Session), Jennifer Visser (Co-Leader, Youth Group), Brian Wynn. 
 

Honduras Mission Committee Report 
By Susan Franklin 
  
El Hogar in Honduras is running as well as can be expected in these difficult days. Those children 
who have a home away from our campuses are at home. Forty-six children and young people who 
do not have somewhere safe to be are living on our elementary school campus along with trusted 
staff caring for them. No one has contracted the COVID-19 Virus, all are well and safe.  Staff are 
ensuring that food and clean water are in good supply. Classes are continuing for the students on 
campus. Staff are also ensuring that those children and young people who are living at home or 
with a guardian are receiving good nutrition and are able to keep up with their school work.   
 
El Hogar Projects (Canada), the not-for-profit agency that allows for a coordinated Canadian effort 
to support El Hogar in Honduras, has been busy during 2020 raising awareness and funds for our 
Honduras kids. We managed Honduran Coffee sales, the Wine Survivor event, made and sold 
Gingerbread churches and Chocolate Bark. It has proven to be difficult for fund-raising and events, 
however we will continue to do the best work we can, to provide for our El Hogar children. 
 
Kingsway-Lambton has received more than $10,000 in donations from generous supporters of 
our Honduras Mission. This money, along with funds generated through other churches and 
supporters, will be sent to Honduras early in the new year to assist with the operating expenses. 
 

In Memoriam 
 
In sure and certain hope of the resurrection to eternal life and into God’s keeping we have 
entrusted these members of our Kingsway-Lambton family now departed. 
 
We are grateful for them and the gifts they shared as partners in the Gospel and builders of 
community. We are in their debt as they are in our hearts.   
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We remember them together with the loved ones of members and adherents of our 
congregation who have died in this past year:  parents, siblings, and friends. 
 
“But we do not want you to be uninformed, brothers and sisters, about those who have died, so 
that you may not grieve as others do who have no hope.  For since we believe that Jesus died 
and rose again, even so, through Jesus, God will bring with him those who have died.”  

1 Thessalonians 4: 13-14 
 

Jean Gunn died January 22, 2020 
David McRuvie died February 9, 2020 
Adam Fanaki died February 15, 2020 

Marion Nicholson died March 17, 2020 
Elva Hasselfeldt died March 26, 2020 
Elizabeth Cullens died April 12, 2020 

Roy French died April 13, 2020 
Dorothy Jansen died April 20, 2020 

Norman Goodayle died April 21, 2020 
Shirley Dimmer died April 27, 2020 

Ross Wemp died May 15, 2020 
Fred Black died May 16, 2020 

Daniel Nelson died May 18, 2020 
Alfred Mettler died June, 2020 

Rodney Fitch died September 4, 2020 
Leslie Keating died September 14, 2020 

Bill Cullens died September 22, 2020 
Don Bainbridge died October 17, 2020 

David Siddall died October 29, 2020 
Alma Sweet died December 3, 2020 

 
These Loved Ones Who’s Services Were Held with Loving 

Care at Kingsway-Lambton United Church 
 

Beverley Anne Jones died March 3, 2020 
Keith Speigelberg died June 3, 2020 

Isabella Rae Young died August 3, 2020 
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Statistical Report of Session 2020 
 
Membership on Church Roll as of December 31, 2019          634  
 
Added to the Church Roll in 2020: 
 By Profession of Faith - under age 18 (Confirmation)               0 
    - over age 18  0 
 By Transfer of Membership    0 
 Reinstated to the Church Roll    0 
  0 
 
Removed from the Church Roll in 2020:    
 By Certificate of Transfer              0 
 By Death            15 
 By Act of Session              0 
             15       
 
Membership on the Church Roll as of December 31, 2020          619 
Non-resident Members          102 
Non-resident Members – Young Adults at University          _33 
          754 
 
Baptisms for the year 2020                      3 
Total number of Marriages in 2020             5 
Burials for the year 2020 (Members)             11 
Total number of Funerals for the year 2020            15 
(Members and Non-Members) 

 

Baptism Report 
By Karen Czaniecki 
 
There was a total of three baptisms held in 2020. Two babies and one adult. The first baptism 
Sunday in the year was February 23, and there was one baby baptism and one adult baptism. 
 
With the church being closed due to the COVID-19 restrictions after March, no baptisms were 
held until restrictions were slightly lowered in the summer. On September 20th an outdoor baptism 
was held for a family with one baby. 
 
Baptism Committee 
Karen Czaniecki, Chair 
Cheryl Lynch 
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Kingsway-Lambton Homes for Seniors, Inc. 
By Greg Service 
 
The arrival of COVID-19 early in the year certainly made 2020 a challenging year for us all. At 
Kingsway-Lambton Homes for Seniors, our responsibility as a Board to provide a “Home“ to our 
residents became much more. We were now responsible for the safety of their health as well. 
A weekly conference call with Board members and the building manager continued throughout 
the year to ensure Public Health guidelines were followed and every measure we could think of 
was enacted to keep them safe. Some examples of our efforts include:   
 
• Extra cleaning staff were retained to continuously clean communal areas seven days a week. 
• Additional security cameras were installed to ensure our sign-in procedures were monitored. 
• A new COVID-19 sign board was added to keep our residents informed.  
• Our garden area was made safe for a place to go during the clement months.  
• All Directors were involved in phone calls to the tenants, our words of encouragement were                     

well received as we reminded them to do their part to stay safe. 
• Groceries were delivered by Jane Bright to one of the suites until other help was arranged. 
• Poinsettias were delivered to each resident with a Merry Christmas from the Board. 

 
Our efforts appeared to have paid off as it was not until early December that one of our residents 
tested positive for the virus – fortunately, she had a quick recovery and there was no spread. 
There were a number of stoves throughout the buildings that did not have automatic high-
temperature shut-off capability. The Board arranged for their replacement in very early 2021.   
 
A sub-committee led by David Macdonald reviewed our Evacuation Plan and brought it up to 
date. The plans were presented and approved by the Board of Directors at our December Zoom 
meeting. 
 
Dan Dupak, a long-term member of the Board, decided to resign and this was reluctantly accepted 
by the Board in December. Thank you, Dan for your service – your engineering expertise will be 
missed. The Board is currently looking to add directors with engineering and/or property 
development skills. 
 
We all look forward to getting back to “normal” so we can be with our loved ones and friends. At 
KLHS, “normal” will enable us to restart the social programs provided by “Get off your Rocker” as 
well as holding our annual BBQ and Christmas luncheon with the tenants. 
 
Thank you to all our Directors and our Management partners at Greenwin Corp: 
 
 Jane Bright  Director, Tenant Relations  
            Charles Donley            Vice President  
 Gale Hughes  Treasurer * 
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 Priscilla Knight  Director, Tenant Health & Safety 
 Ian Lush  Director At Large 
 David Macdonald Past-President * 
 Greg Service  President *   *  Executive Board member 
 

Report of UCW for 2020 
By Rita MacDonald 
 

“And let us consider how to stir up one another to love and good works, not neglecting 
to meet together, as is the habit of some, but encouraging one another…”   

Hebrews 10: 24-25 (ESV) 
 
Preparations for the annual Art Show were already well underway as the year 2020 swung into 
view and each of the five UCW units embarked on its plans for an active year. Funerals were 
catered, the annual potluck with the staff was held, coffee and tea were served in the gymnasium, 
and the Souper Bowl took place. When the Etobicoke Camera Club held a Celebration of Senior 
Women, an entry from one of our members was accepted, featuring another of our members, and 
others from the UCW came out to take in the show.   
 
By mid-March, 2020 was shaping up to be another busy and productive year. The new electronic 
sign, funded by the UCW, was finally installed at a cost of $12,676. Unit plans for field trips and 
guest speakers were in place, and the Flea Market team was all geared up to go.  
 
Then COVID-19 arrived. In mid-March - on Friday the 13th - the Art Show was cancelled. Then the 
Flea Market was postponed. As the world adjusted, the 108 UCW members ripped up their 
calendars and adapted. Socially-distanced outdoor meetings replaced indoor gatherings and 
online meetings became the order of the day. The units kept in touch throughout the year, 
celebrating the arrival of a great-grandchild with one another, or mourning the loss of a friend or 
a spouse, supporting one another with emails and good old fashioned phone conversations.   
 
The transition to Zoom was a success, although it only partially compensated for the absence of 
our traditional June dinner and Christmas Luncheon. An unexpected benefit was that Zooming 
made possible the inclusion of many out-of-town members, here in Ontario and as far away as 
Victoria, BC, in online book discussions, Christmas parties, and just plain get-togethers. 
 
One Unit took over the planning of the Baby Shower for Rev. Leanne Ketcham, and as they did so, 
they tested out the “Lobby” platform that the Church employs for the after-service virtual coffee 
hour.  Another Unit completed assembling gift baskets for clients of the Women’s Habitat as it 
had done for many years in the past, supported by funds donated by the other Units, with the 
2020 twist of doing the work outside in the cold! Funds from the Unit level were donated in 
support of the Warmth Initiative.  As has been the custom in previous years, Council again 
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recognized the Church staff with an honorarium at Christmas, and provided poinsettias in the 
Chancel for the Christmas services. 
 

“For I was hungry and you gave me food, I was thirsty and you gave me something to 
drink, I was a stranger and you welcomed me in”.   

Matthew 25:35 (NRSV) 
 

The UCW was able to continue give strong support to our charities in 2020, despite being unable 
to hold either of our major fundraisers. Over the past years, Council had intentionally held funds 
in reserve against the possibility of a “rainy day”- although just how rainy 2020 turned out to be, 
no one could have predicted! 
 
In allocating its donations, Council had two priorities:  first, to maintain its relationships with as 
many as possible of the charities it had supported in the past; and second, to direct its strongest 
support to those organizations delivering the basic necessities of food and shelter to those in 
greatest need - the homeless, the hungry, and the impoverished and racialized members of our 
community.   
 
Eight charities that continued throughout the whole of 2020 providing Shelter and Safety as they 
had in the past, received funding in 2020 at 100% of the support they received in 2019. A further 
fourteen charities that provide enrichment, support, or educational resources to communities in 
need received, in most cases, 70% of the 2019 amounts. In addition to these 22 charities, the UCW 
maintained our support for the United Church Mission and Service Fund, and the operations of 
Kingsway-Lambton United Church. 
 
In total, $65,100 was donated by the UCW in 2020. Distributions included: 
Kingsway-Lambton United Church   $10,000 
United Church Mission and Service    $4,000 
 

“… and let us run with perseverance the race that is set before us, looking to Jesus the 
pioneer and perfecter of our faith…”  

Hebrews 12:1-2 
 

As 2020 drew to a close, planning had already begun for a virtual Art Show in 2021. The UCW 
Council anticipates filling some Executive vacancies in the upcoming year that include a new 
President, a Membership chair, and a representative for Shining Waters Region. The UCW is 
challenged to find ways to fundraise, and especially to utilize the Flea Market donations now 
stored in the Church. As the world is reorganizing itself around a new reality, the United Church 
Women are looking forward to an interesting year. 
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The Board of Trustees Report 
By John Waymann 

 
The Board of Trustees is pleased to report that our external portfolio manager delivered returns 
of 2.7% across all managed funds in a pandemic-plagued 2020. This contributed to our 
compounded annual growth rate of 4.2% since the Trustees adopted a more active investment 
management strategy in 2013. Our slightly more conservative portfolio fund selection, overall 
asset mix and very troubling investment environment challenged our 2020 returns, but the 
Trustees manage the investments with a long-term view and the funds must be resilient to all 
types of investing conditions.    
 
The Board of Trustees, among other responsibilities, is mandated by the Official Board to manage 
pools of capital for Kingsway-Lambton. These funds are governed internally and externally by 
Investment Policy Statements. These Statements, which have been approved by the Official Board, 
provide investment guidelines to our manager. In 2020, the portfolios increased, net of capital 
deposits and withdrawals, and after all fees and expenses by $32,763. The year-end balances for 
the three funds under management totaled $1,243,500.    
 
The portfolios represent two pools of capital. Approximately half of the funds are a combination 
of restricted and unrestricted funds that have been given to the Church over the years while the 
other half includes two portfolios, which in large measure, came from the sale of two church 
manses many years ago, that generate income to support the operating budget (formerly 
earmarked to support ministerial housing allowances).    
 
In 2020, the Trustees did not have to deal with any major insurance issues. We continue to review 
and update coverage, as required. In general, commercial insurance has become more complex 
and detailed over the last few years…..and coverage premia continue to escalate faster than most 
other church expenses. The Trustees continue to receive guidance and requests from the Official 
Board on insurance requirements.  
 
At the end of February, 2021, Bob Mundy and I will complete our terms as Trustees. We thank Bob 
for his years of dedication, service and wise counsel to the Board and to Kingsway-Lambton.  It 
has been my pleasure to serve and work with all of the Trustees and I have always been grateful 
for my fellow Trustees unwavering support in our efforts to fulfill our mandate. 
 
The Board of Trustees   
Priscilla Knight, Mary Prime, Robert Mundy, Robert Yeo, Jeff Loudon and John Waymann. The 
Board has two active sub-committees:  the Investment Committee made up of Mary Prime, Robert 
Mundy and John Waymann and the Insurance Committee, comprised of Robert Mundy, Robert 
Yeo and Jeff Loudon. 
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Financial Oversight Committee  
By Mireille Khayat 
 
The Financial Oversight Committee (Committee) completed a successful third year and held seven 
meetings during 2020. 
 
At each meeting, the Committee reviewed the year-to-date financial results and compliance 
certificate with regulatory requirements. The Committee conducted the annual policy reviews for 
disbursements, receipts, payroll and investment. The Committee observed that the policies require 
no changes and the internal controls for an organization of its size are adequate. 
 
New this year, the Committee discussed at its meetings the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the 
church’s financials and operations. It reviewed financial projections presented by Geoff Butler, the 
Chair of the Committee of Stewards and Ed Mock, Financial Administrator. 
 
On September 24, the Committee met with the External Accountant, Lynne Remigio to plan the 
upcoming year-end review. The COVID-19 pandemic was the major new event for 2020 fiscal year. 
As a result, the church qualified and received COVID-19 relief funding from the federal 
government’s Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS) program.   
 
The Committee administered, in November, the second annual risk survey. The survey results were 
presented to the Official Board in December. The COVID-19 pandemic created a significant 
disruption to our environment. The survey took into consideration new risks in light of the COVID-
19 pandemic that we are currently experiencing. The survey had a 65% participation rate.   The 
highest ranked risks included lower revenue, engagement, response to pandemic outbreak in the 
congregation and volunteerism. These high-risk categories were unchanged from last year. 
Participants also highlighted other areas of potential risk such as governance and structure, which 
has not changed over the past years, ministerial retirement succession planning, purpose and 
mission of the church and leveraging technology for membership engagement. The feedback 
from the survey is currently under review for prioritization and determining appropriate course of 
action. 
 
In closing, I wish to thank the members of the Financial Oversight Committee, Jim Newton and 
Don Linsdell for sharing their wealth of experience and expertise. I would like to thank Ed Mock 
for all his hard work in maintaining the financials for the church. 
 
Committee Members  
Mireille Khayat, CPA, CMA (Chair), Don Linsdell, CPA, CA, Jim Newton, FCPA, FCA 
Ed Mock, Financial Administrator, B.ASc. 
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Stewards Report  
By Geoff Butler 
 
The Committee of Stewards met six times during 2020 and the members of the committee are 
thanked for their dedication to the church and thoughtful input on financial and other matters 
as the pandemic unfolded.  There were no changes in leadership roles on the committee during 
the year.  Thanks to our Secretary, Colleen Coman, for her excellent work recording the minutes 
of the meetings, to Roman Niemy, who steers the ushering activities, and to Paul Collings and 
John Rook who co-chair the work of the Capital Projects Task Force. 
 
While the building was closed for much of the year, our Property Chair was extremely busy 
dealing with the implementation of COVID-19 protocols and the fluctuating building access 
requirements, in addition to the usual property related issues.  Special thanks to Jim Gallagher 
for his work and leadership navigating the volatile environment. 
 
The support provided to the committee’s activities by Janet Riddell, Church Administrator, is 
much appreciated.  
 
Reports from the Capital Projects Task Force and Property Committee can be found below. 
 
The members of the Committee of Stewards are as follows;  Donald Allan, Ray Bernys, Jane 
Bright, Geoff Butler (Chair), Gregory Collings, Paul Collings, Colleen Coman (Secretary), Nora 
Cutcliffe, Roger Dawson, Hans Dickie, Charles Donley, John Franklin, Susan Franklin, James 
Gallagher (Chair, Property Committee), John Grant, Gale Hughes, Ray Jeffery, Kathy Kearns, 
Priscilla Knight, Ian Lush, Marion Lush, David MacDonald, Don MacInnes, Bruce Merrick, Roman 
Niemy (Chair, Ushering), James Paradine, Michael Richardson, Gord Robb, Fred Schoor, Gregory 
Service, Paul Walters, John Waymann, Bill Winterburn, Robert Yeo. 
 

Status Report of the Capital Campaign (2017-2019) 
By Paul Collings  
 
Special thanks to those members who contributed to this successful campaign.  
 
We now have an organ performing exceptionally well. 
 
The planning process began mid-2019 to identify potential projects to update and modernize our 
church in support of a revitalized program offering. We retained an Architect and along with a 
small task force a detailed analysis began. The intent was that planning concepts would be created 
and presented to the congregation early in 2020 to gather further input and advice prior to 
detailed planning. This did not occur as we entered the spring and further work was halted. 
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We are hopeful that this process can be restarted in the fall and we can revisit many of the basic 
criteria to incorporate what has been learned through the pandemic and our future vision for the 
church. 
  
Committee Members  
John Rook (Co-Chairman), Paul Collings (Co-Chairman), Jim Gallagher, Bob Mundy, John 
Waymann 
 

Property Report  
By Jim Gallagher 
 
Like most things, COVID-19 has had a major impact on how we do business at KLUC. Early in the 
year we successfully added a new electronic sign to the church property. This sign, generously 
donated by the UCW, has allowed KLUC another method of reaching church members and our 
community during the pandemic. Santiago and his staff have implemented our new hygiene and 
entry protocols, while continuing maintain our church. We been able complete minor repairs that 
will be noticed when our congregation returns. Many of you will remember that last winter our 
steam boilers were underperforming. Through the hard work of Santiago, our new boiler 
maintenance company and the identification of blocked steam traps, we can now report that 
church has been consistently warm throughout the winter. We are just waiting to have 
congregants in the pews to feel the warmth. 
 
Many small projects have been completed, taking advantage of the church’s decision to continue 
to employ our staff throughout the pandemic. 
 
We have all learned to manage our affairs remotely and the church is no exception, our staff has 
been exemplary in working from home, while making visits to the church when the need arises. 
We have put in place COVID-19 Contract Tracking Forms for staff, contractors and any visitors to 
the church. Santiago and his maintenance staff have redoubled their efforts to keep our church 
pristine and operating above all health standards. 
 
I thank all our staff for their cooperation in keeping our church functioning during these times of 
restricted operation. I have benefited from an informal maintenance sounding board throughout 
the year, with input from Bob Yeo, Rob McConnell, Don Mal, Ed Mock, Don MacInnes and Geoff 
Butler, all of who have assisted me in my role.  
 
This is my first full year as your Property Chair and to say the least it has been full of challenges, 
new roles and responsibilities. Thanks to all staff and church members for your patience and co-
operation during these ever-changing times.  
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Financial Report 
 
2020 IN REVIEW 
 
It goes without saying that 2020 was an unusual year that presented a number of financial 
challenges for the church. At last year’s Annual Meeting a budget was approved that forecast a 
deficit of ($26,401).  Within weeks of that meeting the pandemic arrived, the church closed to in-
person activity, and the budget was rendered academic. 
 
Notwithstanding the uncertainty created by the pandemic, we ended 2020 with a surplus, 
increasing the Operating Fund by $60,364. Revenue, excluding government wage subsidies, fell 
to $691,351, well below budget primarily due to the loss of rental and other income sources.  
Noteworthy was the wonderful and continuing support of the congregation through their local 
offerings that were $10,645 above 2019 levels. The Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS) 
program contributed $149,532, offsetting the loss of some of our normal sources of revenue. As 
Total Revenue exceeded expectations for the year, a decision was taken to set aside $60,000 in an 
Operating Reserve account.  In the short term these funds will provide support should we 
experience timing related cash flow shortages as we work through the continuing pandemic in 
2021. Operating Expenses of $764,009 were $45,385 below budget for the year as the building 
closure and reduced activity levels resulted in lower costs in a number of areas. 
 
It should be noted that Operating Revenue in 2020 included a significant donation of $10,000 
from the Kingsway-Lambton UCW. 
 
Generous support for charitable organizations and causes outside the church continued despite 
cancellation of major fundraising programs such as the Art Show and Flea Market: 

• $  29,223 donated by the congregation to United Church Missions. 
• $  51,100 donated by the UCW to charities and community organizations. 
• $    4,000 donated by the UCW to United Church Missions. 
• $    8,088 donated through the Benevolent Fund. 
• $    7,000 donated to charitable organizations through the Outreach Fund. 
• $    3,650 donated to the Honduras Mission. 

$103,061 Total 
 
Review Engagement Statements vs. Internal Financial Reporting 
 
The schedule immediately following this report is the Internal Operating Report used by the 
Committee of Stewards and Official Board in their management of the Church finances. The 
difference between the Reviewed and Internal Financial Reports is that the Internal Reporting does 
not include transactions affecting the Capital Assets (amortization, acquisitions, and dispositions). 
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The following reconciles the Internal Operating Report to the Reviewed Statement of Operations 
(page 3): 
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) - (Internal Report)     $ 76,874 
Plus: UCW Contribution for LED Sign - (Reviewed Report)       12,676 
Less: Amortization of Capital Assets - (Reviewed Report)    (102,081) 
Deficiency of Revenue over Expenses (Reviewed Report- 
Statement of Operations)       $ (12,532) 

 

2021 Budget 
By Geoff Butler 
 
Preparation of the 2021 Budget began in November 2020 and, following a series of steps 
engaging all committees, Draft 2 of the budget was approved by the Committee of Stewards on 
February 2nd, 2021 and the Official Board on February 9th, 2021. 
 
High level assumptions underlying the budget are as follows: 
• No major changes in the worship services and other programs currently provided. 
• Support from the CEWS program will continue until June 2021 but at a much-reduced level 

due to changes in the program that took effect in September 2020. 
• A gradual expansion of in-person activity in the church building beginning in the summer 

(additional rentals and small group gatherings) with a return to ‘near normal’ conditions by 
the end of the year. 

• No major new capital expenditures. 
 

The 2021 Operating Budget projects revenue, excluding CEWS subsidies, of $671,950.  CEWS 
subsidies are planned at $40,000 which will bring Total Revenue in 2021 to $711,950.  Operating 
Expenses have been carefully planned given the uncertain conditions.  After the usual Internal 
Fund Transfers a decrease in the Operating Fund of ($12,767) is expected.  This is a manageable 
deficit given the surplus experienced in 2020. 
  

  
 
A 2021 Capital Budget was also approved at the recent Steward’s and Official Board Meetings.  
This budget provides for $44,600 in expenditures in 2021, the largest component of which is a 

2019     
Actual

2020     
Actual

2021    
Budget

Total Revenue 752,404        840,883        711,950        
Operating Expenses 779,828        764,009        773,907        
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) (27,424)         76,874          (61,957)         
Net Internal Fund Transfers 35,285          (16,510)         49,190          
Operating Fund Increase/(Decrease) 7,861            60,364          (12,767)         

Budget Summary
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Contingency Fund of $20,000 to be used as required for small, unexpected projects at the 
discretion of the Property Chair. 

Thanks to the Kingsway-Lambton committee leaders and Stewards who have contributed to 
developing the 2021 budget.  Sincere thanks also to Ed Mock whose excellent work as Financial 
Administrator and knowledgeable support on so many matters is greatly appreciated. 



KINGSWAY- LAMBTON UNITED CHURCH

Financial Report 2018-2021 Reviewed Proposed

For Annual Meeting - 2021.03.07 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE

   Offerings - Local Use 561,572.45  564,538.68  575,184.46 545,000.00    

   Offerings -  Open 36,515.51     37,387.51     26,772.35 27,000.00      

   Grant-Fresh Start 8,000.00       23,125.00     25,000.00 25,000.00      

   Grant-Supervised Education 17,500.00     17,500.00     - - 

   Rent - Nursery School 41,943.60     41,949.00     32,510.49 41,950.00      

   Rent - Film Companies 3,375.00       9,536.50       4,272.00 5,000.00        

   Rent - Brickworks Camp 22,181.25     21,600.00     - 12,000.00      

   Rent - Other 11,046.20     8,595.00       1,560.00 5,000.00        

U.C.W Donation Operating Fund 6,000.00       20,000.00     10,000.00 10,000.00      

U.C.W Donation Flea Market Costs 4,000.00       4,000.00       - - 

   Investment Income (3,774.17)      - 1,298.38 - 

   Program & Event Revenue 2,872.95       2,107.75       502.00 500.00            

   Government Wage Subsidy (TWSE & CEWS) - - 149,532.48 40,000.00      

   Government Rent Assistance (CECRA) - - 6,292.35 - 

   Other Revenue - 2,064.99       7,958.50 500.00            

TOTAL 711,232.79  752,404.43  840,883.01  711,950.00    

OPERATING EXPENSE

   Ministers 261,015.99  287,529.91  284,286.83  265,610.00    

   Office & Administration 117,484.39  136,528.07  137,510.48  140,200.00    

   UCC National Assessment 28,652.00     31,517.00     31,517.00     34,669.00      

   Property 229,368.68  223,550.22  213,162.16  213,791.00    

   Communications 2,456.21       2,101.74       1,589.49       2,200.00        

   Gifts & Giving 1,901.30       852.71          819.05          2,000.00        

   Christian Education 8,248.83       6,813.20       11,217.54     11,915.00      

   Music 60,137.49     67,693.29     67,348.22     85,772.00      

   Worship & Congregational Support 5,088.97       4,807.27       2,154.67       2,300.00        

   Fresh Start 8,105.97       18,434.84     14,403.52     15,450.00      

TOTAL 722,459.83  779,828.25  764,008.96  773,907.00    

OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (11,227.04)   (27,423.82)   76,874.05     (61,957.00)    

INTERNAL FUND TRANSFERS

   From: Manse Fund 28,800.00     28,800.00     28,800.00     28,800.00      

   From: KL Men's Group - - - 3,000.00        

   From: Galbraith CE Fund - - - 2,000.00        

   From: Music Fund 5,240.00       7,985.44       10,945.12     15,390.00      

   From: Emma Johnston Fund - - 2,922.24       - 

   From: Honduras Fund - - 822.60          - 

   To: Capital Reserve Fund (6,000.00)      (1,500.00)      - - 

   To: Operating Reserve Fund - - (60,000.00)   - 

NET INTERNAL FUND TRANSFERS 28,040.00     35,285.44     (16,510.04)   49,190.00      

OPERATING FUND INCREASE / (DECREASE) 16,812.96     7,861.62       60,364.01     (12,767.00)    
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KINGSWAY- LAMBTON UNITED CHURCH

Financial Report 2018-2021 Reviewed Proposed

For Annual Meeting - 2021.03.07 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Actual Budget

MINISTERS

Salaries 221,305.72  244,711.65  232,183.08 213,119.00    

Pension & Benefits 33,119.87     36,142.85     47,221.29 39,991.00      

Contracted Services - - 1,050.00       3,000.00        

Con Education - Coord Minister 958.06          559.12          529.67          2,000.00        

Con Education - Assoc. Minister 286.46          275.00          50.00             1,000.00        

Con Education - Pastoral Care 151.39          168.13          539.31 500.00            

Telephone Reimbursement 1,730.15       1,567.04       1,624.20 2,000.00        

Travel Reimbursement 2,244.44       2,145.70       539.28 2,100.00        

Supply Ministers 850.00          1,650.00       550.00 1,500.00        

Coord Minister Expense Account 369.90          310.42          - 400.00            

Total 261,015.99  287,529.91  284,286.83  265,610.00    

OFFICE & ADMINISTRATION

Salaries 69,487.33     79,964.31     78,252.47     79,191.00      

Pension & Benefits 15,128.85     16,347.46     21,613.10     19,534.00      

Telephone 5,512.00       6,051.40       6,612.79       6,500.00        

Copy & Print Expense 8,319.35       9,963.41       9,297.74       9,500.00        

Office Supplies 4,435.99       5,238.91       3,350.91       3,000.00        

Postage Meter Lease 1,496.08       1,496.12       1,496.12       1,500.00        

Postage 769.07          1,232.46       1,022.57       1,200.00        

Offering Envelopes 353.40          536.85          547.25          550.00            

WSIB 3,141.91       2,332.94       2,399.00       2,800.00        

Payroll & Other Process Charges 2,360.95       2,868.62       4,321.23       4,200.00        

Computer Expense 1,198.49       2,096.82       1,098.89       3,000.00        

Broadview Subscription 83.97             50.00             50.00             50.00 

Financial Review 5,197.00       5,300.94       5,404.88       5,500.00        

Boiler Loan Interest - 20.50             223.66          175.00            

Other Expense - 3,027.33       1,819.87       3,500.00        

Total 117,484.39  136,528.07  137,510.48  140,200.00    

UCC NATIONAL ASSESSMENT 28,652.00     31,517.00     31,517.00     34,669.00      

PROPERTY

Salaries 84,498.06     88,035.71     81,967.71     84,608.00      

Salaries Recovered (1,409.39)      (2,968.81)      - - 

Pension & Benefits 16,120.01     18,393.78     21,214.95     20,708.00      

Casual Help 1,815.00       945.00          - - 

Insurance 10,877.46     10,679.76     11,597.19     13,920.00      

Fuel / Gas 18,003.09     15,413.07     15,761.62     16,500.00      

Hydro 21,823.93     18,506.21     12,733.82     18,500.00      

Water 5,301.57       6,089.46       4,848.01       5,500.00        

Building Repairs 23,985.72     12,977.04     18,289.78     7,175.00        

Equipment 9,189.73       2,297.24       261.90          5,450.00        

Property Supplies 7,628.18       6,638.17       4,730.78       8,139.00        

Services and Inspections 31,535.32     46,543.59     41,756.40     33,291.00      

Total 229,368.68  223,550.22  213,162.16  213,791.00    
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KINGSWAY- LAMBTON UNITED CHURCH

Financial Report 2018-2021 Reviewed Proposed

For Annual Meeting - 2021.03.07 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Actual Budget

COMMUNICATIONS

Newsletters 1,304.43       1,364.32       544.22          1,200.00        

Advertising 428.36          14.00             - 100.00            

Social Media - - 62.00             100.00            

Website 723.42          723.42          983.27          800.00            

Total 2,456.21       2,101.74       1,589.49       2,200.00        

GIFTS & GIVING

Printing 870.41          549.08          528.91          500.00            

Postage 612.94          303.63          290.14          500.00            

Other Costs 417.95          - - 1,000.00        

Total 1,901.30       852.71          819.05          2,000.00        

CHRISTIAN EDUCATION

Alpha Programs 2,112.66       464.11          132.27          600.00            

FCE Events 2,226.83       274.77          127.85          750.00            

Adult Education Programs 194.77          100.00          - 100.00            

Church School 739.64          315.87          209.68          500.00            

Teaching Services 1,600.00       3,985.67       9,290.36       8,736.00        

Pension & Benefits - - 566.68          479.00            

Youth Programs 1,374.93       1,672.78       890.70          750.00            

Total 8,248.83       6,813.20       11,217.54     11,915.00      

MUSIC

Salaries 22,571.13     30,472.42     31,341.40     42,241.00      

Pension & Benefits 1,493.85       2,067.11       4,655.35       3,046.00        

Section Leads & Soloists 26,194.45     31,386.02     29,804.25     36,735.00      

Instrumentalists 5,931.82       1,200.00       1,150.00       1,200.00        

Music & Memberships 587.98          1,035.06       397.22          750.00            

Tuning 1,015.49       207.88          - 1,600.00        

Instrument Repairs - 51.97             - 200.00            

Wednesday Worship 2,342.77       1,272.83       - - 

Total 60,137.49     67,693.29     67,348.22     85,772.00      

WORSHIP & CONGREGATIONAL SUPPORT

Worship 1,587.36       1,958.22       1,578.77       1,000.00        

Connecting, Caring, Welcoming 3,501.61       2,849.05       575.90          1,300.00        

Total 5,088.97       4,807.27       2,154.67       2,300.00        

FRESH START

Guest Speakers 2,950.00       5,500.00       5,800.00       5,700.00        

Music 3,589.71       7,196.78       6,235.57       4,500.00        

Child Care 640.00          2,804.98       461.00          750.00            

Advertising 127.84          774.58          253.76          2,500.00        

Events 536.10          1,466.39       918.20          1,500.00        

Supplies 262.32          692.11          734.99          500.00            

Total 8,105.97       18,434.84     14,403.52     15,450.00      
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    LYNNE D. REMIGIO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER'S REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT

To the Members of
Kingsway Lambton United Church

I have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Kingsway Lambton United Church that comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statements of operations and changes
in fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's  Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit organizations, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Practitioner's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements based on my review. I
conducted my review in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements,
which require me to comply with relevant ethical standards.

A review of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review
engagements is a limited assurance engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting
of making inquiries of management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical
procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained.

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in nature from those
performed in an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted audit standards.
Accordingly, I do not express an audit opinion on these financial statements.

Conclusion

Based on my review, nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that these financial
statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kingsway Lambton United
Church as at December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit organizations.

Etobicoke, Ontario Lynne D. Remigio, CPA CA
February 19, 2021 Licensed Public Accountant

1

555 Burnhamthorpe Road,  Suite 215,  Etobicoke, Ontario M9C 2Y3   .   phone:(416) 252-6669   .   fax: (416) 252-9923
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

Operating Fund Restricted Funds Total Funds
(Schedule)

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
REVENUES
Contributions

Envelope offering $ 575,184 $ 564,539 $ 38,477 $ 199,499 $ 613,661 $ 764,038
Open offering 26,772 37,388 23,957 4,693 50,729 42,081
United Church Missions - - 29,223 28,685 29,223 28,685
Pageant offering - - 5,181 5,830 5,181 5,830
Legacy gifts - - - 15,141 - 15,141
Memorial donations - - 3,198 12,089 3,198 12,089
UCW special contributions 22,676 24,000 - - 22,676 24,000

Government funding (Note 6) 155,825 - - - 155,825 -
Investment income 1,298 - 30,002 77,603 31,300 77,603
Fund raising income - - 857 17,349 857 17,349
Rental income 38,342 81,680 - - 38,342 81,680
UCC project grants 25,000 40,625 - - 25,000 40,625
Program, event and other revenue 8,461 4,173 - - 8,461 4,173

853,558 752,405 130,895 360,889 984,453 1,113,294

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits 560,849 543,899 - - 560,849 543,899
Property maintenance and repairs 109,980 120,090 - 17,960 109,980 138,050
Outreach - - 18,095 16,336 18,095 16,336
United Church Missions - - 29,223 28,685 29,223 28,685
Office and general 32,240 34,915 333 1,722 32,573 36,637
UCC National assessment 31,517 31,517 - - 31,517 31,517
Benevolent support - - 4,765 8,383 4,765 8,383
Fund raising expenses - - 425 7,426 425 7,426
Professional fees 5,405 5,301 - - 5,405 5,301
Christian education 1,361 2,827 - - 1,361 2,827
Music and choir 397 2,568 300 7,985 697 10,553
Ministers expenses 3,293 4,530 - - 3,293 4,530
Amortization of capital assets 102,081 95,657 - - 102,081 95,657
Pageant expense - - 7,282 3,154 7,282 3,154
Other expense 18,967 26,196 - 864 18,967 27,060

866,090 867,500 60,423 92,515 926,513 960,015
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (12,532) (115,095) 70,472 268,374 57,940 153,279

Fund balances, beginning 1,536,324 1,370,356 1,412,773 1,425,462 2,949,097 2,795,818

Interfund transfers (Schedule) (11,909) 281,063 11,909 (281,063) - -

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 1,511,883 $ 1,536,324 $ 1,495,154 $ 1,412,773 $ 3,007,037 $ 2,949,097

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Restricted Funds

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures  and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(Unaudited)

General Capital & Other
Purpose Manse Property Program  Purpose Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 2020 2019

REVENUES
Contributions

Envelope offering $ - $ 1,047 $ 7,000 $ 11,617 $ 18,813 $ 38,477 $ 199,499
Open Offering - - 14,550 - 9,407 23,957 4,693
United Church Missions - - - - 29,223 29,223 28,685
Pageant offering - - - 5,181 - 5,181 5,830
Legacy gifts - - - - - - 15,141
Memorial donations 3,198 - - - - 3,198 12,089

Investment income 1,017 18,488 6,702 1,489 2,306 30,002 77,603
Fund raising income - - - - 857 857 17,349

4,215 19,535 28,252 18,287 60,606 130,895 360,889

EXPENDITURES
Property maintenance and repairs - - - - - - 17,960
Outreach - - - - 18,095 18,095 16,336
United Church Missions - - - - 29,223 29,223 28,685
Office and general expenses - - - - 333 333 1,722
Benevolent support - - - - 4,765 4,765 8,383
Fund raising expenses - - - - 425 425 7,426
Music and choir - - - 300 - 300 7,985
Pageant expense - - - 7,282 - 7,282 3,154
Other expense - - - - - - 864

- - - 7,582 52,841 60,423 92,515
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES 4,215 19,535 28,252 10,705 7,765 70,472 268,374

Net Assets, beginning of year 69,523 618,281 457,686 107,055 160,228 1,412,773 1,425,462

Interfund transfers
To Operating Fund:

From Trustees Manse Fund - (28,800) - - - (28,800) (28,800)
Capital assets acquired - - (9,937) - - (9,937) (253,763)
From Music Fund - - - (10,945) - (10,945) -
From Emma Johnston Fund - - - - (2,922) (2,922) -
Honduras Fund Interest - - - - (823) (823) -

From Operating Fund
To Capital Reserve - - 2,668 - - 2,668 1,500
To Manse Fund B - 2,668 - - - 2,668 -
To Operating Reserve Fund 60,000 - - - - 60,000 -

60,000 (26,132) (7,269) (10,945) (3,745) 11,909 (281,063)

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 133,738 $ 611,684 $ 478,669 $ 106,815 $ 164,248 $1,495,154 $1,412,773

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Schedule of Expenditure Detail - Operating Fund

(Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

2020 2019
EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries

Ministers $ 233,233 $ 244,712
Organists and soloists 62,296 55,073
Office 78,252 79,964
Property 81,968 85,067
Christian education 9,290 3,986

465,039 468,802
Pension, group health and life insurance

Ministers 47,221 36,143
Organists and soloists 4,655 2,067
Office 21,613 16,347
Property 21,215 18,394
Christian education 567

95,271 72,951
Other benefits

Ministers' travel reimbursements 539 2,146
560,849 543,899

Property
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 65,039 69,401
Fuel 15,762 15,413
Hydro and water 17,582 24,596
Insurance 11,597 10,680

109,980 120,090

Office and general
Printing, stationery, office and sundry 25,403 28,843
Loan interest 224 21
Telephone 6,613 6,051

32,240 34,915

UCC National Assessment 31,517 31,517

Christian education 1,361 2,827

Professional fees 5,405 5,301

Music and choir 397 2,568

Ministers expenses 3,293 4,530

Amortization of capital assets 102,081 95,657

Other expenses
Communications 1,590 2,102
Stewardship campaign 819 853
Fresh Start expense 14,404 18,434
Worship and congregational support 2,154 4,807

18,967 26,196

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 866,090 $ 867,500

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

2020 2019

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Operating Fund

Deficiency of Revenue over Expenses $ (12,532) $ (115,095)

Items not involving cash:
Amortization of capital assets 102,081 95,657

89,549 (19,438)

Changes in non-cash working capital balances:
Accounts receivable decrease (increase) 4,081 6,026
Prepaid expenses decrease (increase) 7,688 19,315
Deferred revenue increase (decrease) (31,975)
Accounts payable increase (decrease) (3,765) (6,291)

97,553 (32,363)

Restricted Funds
Excess of Revenue over Expenses 70,472 268,374
Changes in non-cash working capital balances: - -

70,472 268,374

Total cash provided by operating activities 168,025 236,011

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Loan repayments (4,904) (4,990)

(4,904) (4,990)

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (22,612) (258,129)
Acquisition of pooled investments (10,650) (73,937)

` (33,262) (332,066)

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year 129,859 (101,045)

Cash balance, beginning of the year 387,368 488,413

Cash balance, end of year $ 517,227 $ 387,368

Cash position, end of year comprised of:

Cash and money market funds, trustees' funds $ 4,292 $ 13,907

Cash and money market funds, other church funds 512,935 373,461

$ 517,227 $ 387,368

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

STATUS AND PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Kingsway Lambton United Church is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is
organized for the purpose of providing religious instruction and charitable outreach as a member of the
wider United Church of Canada.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not for
profit organizations in Part III of the CPA (Chartered Professional Accountants) Canada Handbook –
Accounting and include the following significant accounting policies:

Fund Accounting

Kingsway Lambton United Church follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

(i) Operating Fund

The Operating Fund accounts for the general operations and programs of the church. Unrestricted
contributions and restricted contributions to be used for operations are reported in this fund.

ii) Restricted Funds

General Purpose Funds

General purpose restricted funds are undesignated funds that are available for future operating purposes
at the discretion of the Committee of Stewards. During 2020 the Stewards established a new Operating
Reserve Fund in this category for these future operating purposes. 

Manse Funds

Manse Funds include the Manse Fund Operated by the Board of Trustees and the Manse Fund B.

The Manse Fund Operated by the Board of Trustees (Trustees Funds) report the assets, liabilities and
expenses related to the proceeds of sale of two manses previously owned by the Church.  As a condition
of granting consent for the sale of the two manses, the Toronto West Presbytery required that these funds
be invested in a special fund from which a manse allowance is to be paid to the church.  Any additional
income above the manse allowance is to be reinvested in the special fund to be maintained apart from the
general funds of the church. During the year transfers of $28,800 (2019, $28,800) were made from this
fund to the general fund as a contribution towards the clergy housing component of ministers' salaries.

The Manse Fund B was established in 2012 to set aside additional funds to cover the clergy housing
component of ministers' salaries in light of the anticipated depletion of the Manse Funds Operated by the
Board of Trustees.  Allocations to this fund are made annually at the direction of the Committee of
Stewards and the funds are separately invested.

Capital and Property Funds

Capital and property funds are funds that have been designated for specific capital purposes or general
capital reserves.

7
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

Program Funds

Program funds are funds that have been designated for specific program related purposes.

Other Funds

The church maintains a number of other funds to report the revenues and expenditures related to
designated activities or projects of the congregation outside of the normal operating activities.

Restricted funds include both internally and externally restricted resources.

Recognition of Contributions

The church follows the restricted fund method of accounting whereby internally and externally restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the fund corresponding to the purpose for which they were
contributed in the fund corresponding to the purpose for which they were contributed. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenues in the Operating Fund.

Contributed Services

Volunteers contribute an undeterminable, but substantial, number of hours during the year to assist the
church in carrying out its mission. Because of the difficulty of determining their fair market value,
contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

Recognition of Other Revenues

Other revenues, including rents, activity and event fees and miscellaneous sales are recognized when
received or receivable. Project grants are recognized over the period of the project.

Financial Instruments

The church initially recognizes its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The church
subsequently measures its financial assets and financial liabilities as follows: 

Financial assets:

Cash and accounts receivable Amortized cost

Pooled investment funds Fair value

Financial liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost

Loan Payable Amortized cost

8
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

Recognition and Allocation of Investment Income

Investment income earned on deposit accounts, which includes cash in banks, brokers cash accounts
and money market funds, is recorded on the accrual basis. Investment income on pooled fund
investments is recorded based on the increase in the fair value of the investments. Investment income is
allocated to the appropriate fund as follows:

Investment income of the funds operated by the Board of Trustees is maintained separate and recorded
as revenue of the fund.

The Manse fund B is separately invested and the investment income of the fund is maintained separate
and recorded as revenue fob that fund, 

Investment income earned on other church funds is first allocated to any restricted funds which require
reinvestment. The remaining investment income is allocated between the operating fund and all other
restricted funds on a pro-rata basis to reflect the activity in those funds. Exceptions to this general
allocation policy may be made by the Committee of Stewards directing another allocation method based
on financial priorities identified for any given year.

Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at the fair value at
the date of contribution.

Amortization is provided on a straight line basis over the assets' estimated useful lives as follows:
Church buildings straight line over 25 years
Boiler straight line over 25 years
Organ straight line over 25 years
Furniture and Fixtures straight line over 5 years
LED Sign straight line over 10 years

One half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition.

Pension Plan

The church contributes to the Pension Plan of The United Church of Canada on behalf of its eligible
employees. The pension plan is a multi-employer defined benefit plan, however it is accounted for as a
defined contribution plan as sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit plan accounting.

Cash

The church’S policy is to present bank balances, cash in brokers’ accounts and money market funds
under Cash.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not for profit
organizations requires church officers to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements.  Significant financial statement items that require the use of estimates
are the useful life and amortization of capital assets. Church officers believe that the estimates utilized in
preparing the church’s financial statements are reasonable and prudent.  Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

9
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

2. INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of pooled investment funds reported at fair value, as follows:

2020 2019

Fiera Capital pooled funds
Trustees' (manse) Funds $ 507,857 $ 511,038
Capital Fund 600,400 588,581
Manse Fund B 85,432 83,420

Total pooled Investment Funds $ 1,193,689 $ 1,183,039

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are comprised of the following:

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization

Net
2020

Net
2019

Building $ 2,001,341 $ 1,015,362 $ 985,979 $ 1,066,033
Boiler System 127,465 33,137 94,328 99,426
Organ 236,483 14,189 222,294 231,753
LED Sign 12,676 634 12,042 -
Furniture and Fixtures 296,686 259,921 36,765 33,665

$ 2,674,651 $ 1,323,243 $ 1,351,408 $ 1,430,877

4. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of the following:  2020 2019

Fresh Start program grant $ 13,875 $ 13,875

5. LOAN PAYABLE

The loan payable was advanced by The Toronto United Church Council from the Sustainable Energy
Loan Fund for a boiler renewal project. The initial loan advance was for $50,000 and is repayable over ten
years, maturing November 1, 2024. Zero percent interest applied to the loan for the first five years of the
term. As of December 1, 2019, the loan became interest bearing at 1% per annum until maturity. Current
monthly payments are $ 427 monthly, blended principal and interest.

2020 2019

Loan Payable, principal balance $ 19,689 $ 24,593
Less: Current portion payable in the coming year (4,954) (4,904)

$ 14,735 $ 19,689

10
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

5. LOAN PAYABLE (continued)

Future principal payments required on the loan are as follows: 2021 $ 4,954
2022 5,004
2023 5,053
2024 4,678

6. GOVERNMENT FUNDING

Government funding consists of the following:  

2020 2019

Canada Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance $ 6,292 $ -
Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy 149,533 -

$ 155,825 $ -

7. EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Net assets are subject to externally imposed restrictions as follows:
2020 2019

Manse Fund Operated by the Board of Trustees
Capital amount from the sale of manses to be retained $ 282,009 $ 282,009
Reinvested income restricted for manse allowances 226,014 238,810

508,023 520,819
Capital and Property Funds

Howard Banting Memorial for air conditioning 46,064 45,412
McIlroy Garden Bequest 1,032 1,018
Organ Enhancement Fund 25,359 25,000
Jane McArthur Memorial for landscaping 267 263

72,722 71,693
Program Funds

Galbraith Choir Bequest 10,442 10,294
Galbraith Sunday School Bequest 34,480 33,991

44,922 44,285
Other Externally Restricted Funds

Emma Johnston Memorial for children and young adults 42,435 44,733
Baker Foundation for outreach - 823

42,435 45,556

$ 668,102 $ 682,353
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Kingsway Lambton United Church
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

8. INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The church maintains a number of internally restricted funds. Expenditure of these funds requires the
approval of the Committee of Stewards. Internally restricted net assets are as follows:

2020 2019

General Purpose Funds
Operating Reserve Fund $ 60,000 $ -
Reserve Fund 45,363 44,721
Memorial Gifts 3,216 -
Violet Beattie Bequest 5,646 5,566
Catherine Logie Bequest 9,142 9,012
Margaret Harris Bequest 6,110 6,024
Alan Parks Bequest 4,260 4,200

133,737 69,523
Manse Funds

Manse Fund B $ 103,661 $ 97,462

Capital and Property Funds
Capital Reserve Fund 17,039 14,129
Capital Campaign Fund 386,732 363,906
Sanctuary Curtain Fund 1,327 1,308
Special Projects Fund 849 6,650

405,947 385,993
Program Funds

Mary Arnot Memorial 3,507 3,457
Senior Choir Fund 24,170 23,483
Junior/Youth Choir Fund 1,394 1,375
Pageant Fund 8,994 10,963
Christian Education - Senior Youth / Contemporary Worship 23,829 23,492

61,894 62,770
Other Internally Restricted Funds

Welfare and Benevolence 40,168 38,953
Outreach Easter and Thanksgiving 2,887 1,320
Outreach Auction Fund-raiser 860 848
Honduras Mission Project 59,080 55,431
Kingsway Lambton Golf Fellowship 827 815
Kingsway Lambton Men's Group 10,484 9,905
Kingsway Lambton Knitters 2,805 2,765
Flavelle/Windeyer Emergency Fund 4,702 4,635

121,813 114,672

$ 827,052 $ 730,420

9. PENSION PLAN CURRENT SERVICE COST

The church's current service cost of its participation in the Pension Plan of the United Church of Canada
recognized for the year and included in employee benefits in the statement of operations is  $31,593
(2019, $27,918).

12

53



Kingsway Lambton United Church
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(Unaudited)

10.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK

The church is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The following analysis presents
the church’s exposure to significant risks at the reporting date.

Market Risk

The church is exposed to market risk on its investments in pooled funds, which are reported at fair value.
This market risk is comprised of interest rate risk on pooled fixed income funds and other price risk on
pooled equity funds. The risk is mitigated by the fact that the investments are part of a large pool and the
underlying investments in the pooled funds are widely diversified.

11.IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The outbreak of a novel and highly contagious form of coronavirus (“COVID-19”), which the World Health
Organization has declared to constitute a pandemic, has adversely impacted the church's operations. In
early March of 2020, virtually all events and group activities were halted to counter the spread of COVID-
19. This included in-person church services for much of the balance of the year. In the fiscal 2020 year,
the church's cash flows were affected mainly in regards to the loss of contributions and from loss of rental
income from a nursery school using the church facilities and from other rental other activities. The church
has made rent concessions to their nursery school tenant for the months of April through June and has
applied for and received Canada Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance to partially offset these rent
losses. The church has also applied for and received, federal Canada Emergency Wage Subsidies for the
periods March 15 to December 19. For the coming 2021 fiscal year, there is uncertainty as to how the
ongoing closures and restrictions related to the COVID-19 pandemic will affect the church's cash flows. 
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KINGSWAY-LAMBTON UNITED CHURCH 

ANNUAL CONGREGATIONAL MEETING 
Sunday March 7, 2021 - 12:00 pm via Zoom 

AGENDA 

1. Constitution of the Annual Meeting Priscilla Knight 

2. Prayer Rev. Hugh Reid 

3. Acknowledgement of the Land Dorothy Foster 

4. Reading of “In Memoriam” Gord Robb 

5. Adoption of Minutes of Annual Congregation meeting March 1, 2020

6. Presentation of Reports

M&P Report (5 min) Jean Veitel 

LIVING & SHARING OUR FAITH PILLAR

• Fresh Start Presiding Minister’s report (5 min) Rev. Sam Needham 

• Pastoral Care Report (5 min) Rev. David Winsor  

• Co-ordinating Minister’s report (10 min) Rev. Hugh Reid 

LIVING OUR FAITH IN THE COMMUNITY PILLAR 

• Kingsway-Lambton’s support of the community during the pandemic

MAINTAINING OUR FINANCIAL VIABILITY PILLAR 

• Treasurer/Stewards Report (20 min) Geoff Butler 

• Financial Oversight Committee (5 min) Mireille Khayat 

• Board of Trustees (5 min) John Waymann 

ENSURE VOLUNTEER LEADERSHIP CONTINUES PILLAR 

• Nominating Committee (10 min) Horace Knight 

KINGSWAY-LAMBTON & THE PANDEMIC 

• Preparedness Committee (5 min) Jim Gallagher 

• What have we learnt?

CHAIR’S MESSAGE (5 min) Priscilla Knight 

7. The Benediction Rev. Hugh Reid 
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